Answers to Industry Comments/Questions on the Draft Wallops Institutional Consolidated Contract (WICC) II Draft Statement of Work, dated 9/23/2011, Draft RFP posted 3/30/2012 and Industry Day 4/12/2012

April 27, 2012
Note:  Missing questions from this series are anticipated to be posted by 4/30/12.

124.  Reference SOW 1.1 Institutional Program Implementation and Business Management. Requirement:” At the beginning of the contract phase-in period, the Government will provide the Contractor with a copy of the existing Wallops Institutional Information Management System (Category 2) source files for all WIIMS web applications (approximately 45) and database tables (approximately 290). WIIMS is currently integrated with the Government’s existing CMMS and the current contractor’s business management system. The Contractor shall integrate their business management system(s) with the existing WIIMS and the existing CMMS as part of an IMS to assure accomplishment of contract technical, safety, schedule, and cost objectives. All current modules of the IMS shall be functioning on day one of the contract.”

Question: Please provide a list of WIIMS web applications and database dictionary

  Answer:  See answer to Question 3 posted February 29, 2012.
131.  Reference SOW 2.8.1 A&E Services.  Requirement e states, “…achieve energy consumption levels that are at least 30% below the levels established in the version of American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Engineers, (ASHRAE) Standard or the International Energy Conservation Code…” 

Question:  We assume this refers to the “current” version of the ASHRAE Standard. Please provide the reference version for this standard.

             Answer:   As A&E Services are IDIQ under SOW 2.8, the current ASHRAE version would be whatever version is current at the time an IDIQ task is issued.

132.  Reference SOW 3.2.2, CMMS.  Requirement: “The Contractor shall operate the Government furnished CMMS to manage the operations and maintenance program; provide work management reports; provide cost reports; manage, monitor and make annual updates to the NASA and NAVY equipment inventory…”

a.  Question: What version of Maximo is in use?

       Answer:  See answer to Question 71 posted February 29, 2012.
137.  Reference  SOW 7.1(e). Regulatory Support.  Requirement: “The Contractor shall provide to the CO or designee, within 60 calendar days of contract start date, sampling and analysis plans applicable to the specific environmental program/media and mission projects being supported. In addition, the Contractor shall provide to the CO or designee, within 60 calendar days of contract start date, the Contractor’s Analytical Services Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) Program Plan which shall include a chemical hygiene plan per the requirements of GPR 1700.2 Chemical Hygiene Program and 29 CFR 1910.1450. The plan shall be reviewed and updated annually by the date of the initial submission to the CO or designee.”

Question:  Please provide an estimate of the number of sampling and analysis plans required within 60 days of the contract start date and copies or access to the existing plans.
  Answer:   See Draft RFP Attachment J-2, 7.1 for approximate quantities.

139.  Reference SOW 7.2(g) Routine Monitoring and Support/Mission Analysis.
Requirement: “Perform mission specific analyses on media to include fuels, deicing inhibitors, lubricants, hydraulic oils, breathing air or oxygen, PCB’s in transformer oil, metals, elemental testing, soil extracts, oxidizers, hypergols, and liquid/gas commodities. All test procedures shall be submitted to the CO or designee for approval.”

Question:  Please provide an estimate of the number of analyses required on a per time basis.

  Answer:  See Draft RFP Attachment J-2, 7.1 for approximate quantities.
141.  Reference SOW 8.2.6(b) Routine and Recurring Services.  Requirement: “Arrange for disposal of hazardous waste, non-usable hazardous material, and regulated wastes at facilities pre-approved by the CO or designee. The Contractor shall provide to NASA all services, materials, licenses and equipment necessary for final disposition of hazardous waste, non-usable hazardous material and regulated wastes including sampling, analysis, packaging, marking, labeling, manifesting, transportation, treatment, interim storage, disposal, and destruction. Submit Hazardous Waste Manifest to the CO or designee for signature prior to shipment. Shipments must be coordinated with the Government to assure availability for signature.”

a.  Question: Please provide a time-based estimate of waste volumes managed and disposed including treatment types and volumes treated.  

       Answer:  The following chart provides historical data for 2011 that will be posted in the technical library for information purposes.  The technical library is located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html 
	Item 
	2011 pounds 
	Treatment

	Aerosol Spray Cans
	1200
	disposal

	Alkaline Batteries
	240
	recycle

	Aqueous Film Forming Foam
	1200
	disposal

	Asbestos
	500
	recycle

	Brulin and Water 
	2055
	disposal

	Compressed Gas Cylinders (12")
	25
	disposal

	Copper Sulfate
	800
	disposal

	Corrosive Lab Packs
	90
	disposal

	Corrosive Liquids
	1300
	disposal

	Crushed Fluorescent Lamps
	800
	recycle

	Electron Tubes
	960
	recycle

	Flammable Labpacks
	2865
	disposal

	Flammable Paint
	700
	disposal

	Gasoline Filters
	184
	disposal

	HID Lamps
	135
	recycle

	Hydrochloric Acid
	310
	disposal

	Isopropyl Alcohol
	7200
	disposal

	Isopropyl Alcohol and Phosphoric Acid
	33520
	disposal

	JP8
	2040
	disposal

	Kerosene/RP1
	3600
	disposal

	Lead Acid Batteries
	8200
	recycle

	Lead Rags
	50
	disposal

	Lead Solder
	135
	recycle

	Lead Waste
	120
	disposal

	Lithium Batteries
	95
	recycle

	Mercury in Manufactured Articles
	40
	recycle

	Mercury Spill Cleanup
	45
	disposal

	Nickel Cadmium Batteries
	495
	recycle

	Nonhazardous Cutting Fluid
	13640
	disposal

	Nonhazardous Labpacks
	4000
	disposal

	Oily Rags/Spill cleanup
	8750
	disposal

	Paint Stripper
	5
	disposal

	Paint Thinner
	1680
	disposal

	Petroleum Contaminated Soil
	1875
	disposal

	Petroleum Distillates
	2500
	disposal

	Petroleum Naptha
	384
	disposal

	Silver Epoxy
	10
	disposal

	Silver Nitrate
	40
	disposal

	Sodium Hydroxide
	960
	disposal

	Sodium Nitrate
	240
	disposal

	Solvent Rags
	2332
	disposal

	Thermite
	6
	disposal


142.  Reference SOW 8.2.8(b) External Tracking, Reporting, and Record Keeping.  Requirement: “Prepare internal and external regulatory reports. The Contractor shall maintain an electronic file of all documents in the RMS.”

Question: Please provide an estimate of the number and format/content of reports expected to be prepared annually.
  Answer: There are an estimated 25 annual reports (which include plans and data calls).  There is not one format/content required for these reports.  Instead, these must be completed in accordance with Environmental Protection Agency and Virginia Department of Environmental Quality permits and regulatory reporting requirements as well as in accordance with NPR 1450.10.
143.  Reference SOW 9.1d Occupational Medicine, Documentation.  Requirement d states “The Contractor shall develop submittals, documents, logs, records, analytical results, operations and maintenance manuals, and procedures using the latest version of the standard GSFC office automation computer software suite of programs (i.e., Microsoft Word, Excel, Access, PowerPoint, etc.). 

           Question: Does the GSFC software include an electronic medical records software (EMR) and scheduling module; if so, will this software be required for execution of this contract?

 Answer:  No, there is no EMR and scheduling module.  

144.  Reference SOW 9.3.2 Medical Surveillance.  Requirement: “The Contractor shall coordinate medical surveillance with industrial hygiene, radiation, safety, and environmental personnel to ensure that employees exposed to on-the-job potential health hazards are included in the Occupational Medicine Program…”

a.  Question:  This requirement mentions potential for radiation exposure; is Radiation Emergency Assistance Center/Training Site (REAC/TS) training and certification required and if so, is the training the responsibility of the contractor? 

       Answer:  No, REAC/TS training and certification is not required.

b.  Question:  Also, if required, does existing staff have this training and certification?

      Answer:  N/A. 
145.  Reference SOW 9.1(a) Occupational Medicine, staff.  Requirement 9.1 a mentions the contractor shall furnish all professional medical and administrative personnel necessary to operate these programs and services.  

a.  Question: We assume vaccinations, medical supplies, vaccinations, and office supplies will be cost reimbursable or furnished as GFE or CFE. Is this correct?

        Answer: Yes, in accordance with SOW Section 9.4, the Contractor shall purchase immunizations.  The Contractor shall provide all equipment and supplies, other than those provided as IAGP in the draft RFP Attachment J-3, necessary to support the Occupational Medicine Program and the Wallops Flight Facility Health Unit.  The core requirement is cost reimbursable.  As a result, all costs associated with this Section of the SOW must be included in the Contractor’s proposed cost.

152.  Reference PWS Section 9.0, NASA Occupational Medicine, describes the spectrum of services required.  We understand that these services have been provided at WFF for many years.  In order to provide for continuity of service and properly price this section of the effort contractors need additional information.

a.  Question:  Is the current staff of physicians direct employees of the incumbent or independent subcontractors?  
      Answer:  See Answer to Question 66 posted February 29, 2012. 
b.  Question:  Is the Program subcontracted? If so to which company?

      Answer:  No, the Program is not currently subcontracted. 
153. The core services requirements in Sections 3.1.a, 3.1.b and the General Requirements in 3.2.1 of the latest draft SOW include Preventive Maintenance (PM) and Predictive Testing & Inspection (PT&I) which are components of a Reliability Centered Maintenance (RCM) program as defined in NASA Policy Directive NPD8831.1 referenced in 3.2.1. 
Question:   Is a mature fully developed RCM program in place that requires no 
further development by the contractor? 

     Answer:  See Answer to Question 16 posted February 29, 2012.
154. Question:  Will the WICC RFP identify how an Offeror can identify proposed innovation or methodologies that exceed minimum PWS requirements? And, how they will be evaluated? As an example NASA answered essentially the same question in a current NASA RFP as shown in the following excerpt.    

	How does the offeror identify that they exceeded the requirements?
	RFP will be updated to provide instructions regarding capabilities that exceed requirements. 

The following illustrates documentation of a proposed performance capability that exceeds 

Minimum PWS requirements.

 Hypothetical PWS minimum requirement: The contractor shall provide one 

Olde Dot Matrix Printer in each building. 

Offeror's proposal response: The offeror proposes, as part of its approach in the Mission 

Suitability Volume, that it will provide a Fancy ColorLaserJet Printer to every 20 employees

instead of one in each building. As part of its Mission Suitability Volume, the offeror explains

the benefit to the  Government of this  performance capability which exceeds the minimum

requirements in the  PWS.   The offeror's benefit is a workforce productivity increase of 20%.

As part of the proposal, the offeror captures the total cost of $150,000  to provide this

performance capability in the Cost portion of Volume II. The offeror also includes rationale

and explanation of the basis of estimate for this performance capability in the BOE portion of

Volume II. Also as part of the proposal, the offeror  identifies this performance capability in

 the summary table in the Other Plans and Data Volume. 

The summary table includes a line for the Fancy ColorLaserJet Printer performance 

capability with a Rough Order of Magnitude marginal cost estimate of $100,000. 

(This implies that the implementation of the minimum PWS requirement for a Olde Dot 

Matrix Printer in each building would have an approximate cost of $50,000.) 


    Answer:  Specific examples will not be provided.  See draft RFP Section M.4, which provides all Offerors information on how one will be evaluated.  
155.   Reference SOW – Page 15, Section 1.3.5.2

         Question: Will the successful Offerors use the Government’s existing Government Furnished Equipment database to accomplish the tracking & control specified in this section? 
           Answer:  Yes.  Government furnished equipment is included in the list of IAGP which is  Attachment J-3 to the draft RFP.  Property with an Equipment Control Number (ECN) Government is entered into the NASA Property System (N-PROP) by the Contractor.  For property that does not have an ECN in the J-3, the Contractor has the option of tracking in N-PROP or in own system.  This requirement will be added to the final SOW/RFP.  

156.  Reference SOW Section 2.8.3.1 Specification Preparation-It states that the Contractor shall “create new project specifications for construction projects using NASA Spec Intact Software and Text”.

         Question:  Does this mean that NASA has their ID Specs Software?  

            Answer:  Yes.  See SOW Sections 1 and 2.3.   

157. 

a.  Question:  Do our facilities need improvement?

      Answer:  Yes, based on the most recent facilities condition assessment located in the technical library at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html 
158.  Aging Facilities
         Question:  Is the issue of aging facilities an issue at Wallops as it is at other NASA and DoD facilities?  

           Answer:  Yes.  The most recent facilities condition assessment is located in the technical library at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.
159.  Question:  What shape are the launch pads out on the island?
            Answer:  The condition of the pads and the support equipment are in the most recent facilities condition assessment located in the technical library at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.
161.  Question: Who are the subcontractors currently performing small subcontracts under the current WICC?  
          Answer:  While we are unable to provide a listing of subcontractors currently performing small subcontracts under the current WICC, all interested parties that attended Industry Day were posted to http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/eps/sol.cgi?acqid=146923#Other%2006 on April 13, 2012 by name and company.  
162.  Question:  Will you provide historical figures for commercial efforts to date? 

Answer:  Although the historical figures to date for this area are less than $200K/year, this number may increase based on planned WFF missions.
163.  Question:  Why was protective services removed from the SOW? 

Answer:  This was in internal GSFC decision.
164.  Question:  What needs to be done to the seawall on Wallops Island?

  Answer:  In the future, seawall maintenance may be required via IDIQ Task Orders under SOW 4.   Seawall maintenance may include rock placement on the existing seawall and pushing up sand behind the seawall after storm events. 
171.  Section E.6, p. 19 states that the Contractor shall comply with higher level quality standard ANSI/ISO/ASQ Q9001-2000. The most recent ISO standard is ISO 9001-2008. 
         Question:  Please verify if the Contractor should comply with 9001-2000 or 9001-2008?

           Answer:  Section E.6, p.19 should read ANSI/ISO/ASQ Q9001-2008  Section E.6 will be corrected in the final RFP.

172. Section L.7, p.139 states that the core services are "Cost Plus Fixed Fee (CPIF)."  
         Question:  Please clarify if Core Services are CPFF (as spelled out) or Cost Plus Incentive Fee (as indicated by the CPIF).

Answer:  Section L.7, p.139 should read “Cost Plus Incentive Fee (CPIF).  Section L will be corrected in the final RFP.
174.  Question:  Can you explain the NISH/Ability One relationship? 

            Answer:  According to the Ability One Website, http://www.abilityone.gov/abilityone_network/cnas.html, the U.S. AbilityOne Commission, formerly known as the The Committee for Purchase From People Who Are Blind or Severely Disabled (the Committee) is directed by the Javits-Wagner-O’Day Act to establish central nonprofit agency or agencies (CNA or CNAs).  The Commission has designated National NISH (serving people with a range of disabilities) as one of the national nonprofit organizations that perform this and other functions that assist nonprofit agencies to participate in the AbilityOne Program.  The nonprofit agencies are known as Ability One Agencies.  More information on this relationship can be found at www.abilityone.gov.
175. Question:  Will the Contractor have to negotiate with NISH, or will the price be set prior to contract start?

          Answer:  The price will not be set prior to contract start.  The estimate received from NISH for these services will be provided in the library for all Offerors no later than the day the final RFP is released.      
176.  Question:  Will the Government allow 45-60 days for proposals?

           Answer:  NASA will allow 45 days for proposals. This change will be reflected in the final RFP.  
178.  Question:  Contractors’ Financial System – is this system turned over to WICC Contractor or does the Contractor bring their own system? 

          Answer:  See SOW Section 1.1.a.  The Contractor shall integrate their business management system(s) with the existing Wallops Institutional Integrated Management System (WIIMS) and the existing Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS) as part of an Integrated Management System (IMS) to assure accomplishment of contract technical, safety, schedule, and cost objectives.  The selected Contractor’s financial system will have to link to the WIIMS and MAXIMO to ensure costs are updated on a daily basis for IDIQ tasks.  
180. Question:  What is the cut-off date for Questions to the draft RFP and SOW for WICC II?

            Answer:  All questions to the Draft RFP and SOW for WICC II should be submitted by April 30, 2012.

182.  Question:  Will clearances be required for access on to work in/at some facilities?

           Answer:  See answer to Question 30 posted February 29, 2012. 
183.  Question: Why is there a 4 million annual revenue requirement for a small business requirement?

Answer:  Given the estimated value of this procurement, this is what the Government has determined to be minimum size relevance for the prime contractors past performance examples.  
189.  We can find no definitive information or data that specify how and what type of IDIQ work may be issued.  Without this information Offerors are unable to provide much of the information required by the Government in the Mission Suitability proposal, Technical Approach and Management Approach.  For example, we cannot accurately propose labor categories for draft RFP Attachment J-4 without workload information.  We cannot accurately provide our best management or technical approaches without understanding the complexity and the magnitude of IDIQ work.   
Answer:  IDIQ task orders for contract year 2011 are being posted in the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.  In addition, see SOW Scope, pargaraph 5. We do not have a value of the IDIQ anticipated at this time.  
